Select Board Meeting

Minutes
Monday, November 24, 2025 at 6:30 pm

Regular Meeting
PLACE OF MEETING: Mallett Hali - 429 Hallowell Rd, Pownal, Maine 04069

Note: Final packet is posted Monday prior to the meeting.

1. Call to Order

Minutes:
Call to Order by Chair Morris at 6:30 pm Members Present: Jon Morris, Kate Day,

George Pottle, Town Administrator: Becky Taylor-Chase, Fire Chief: Jesse Peters
2. Pledge of Allegiance
Minutes:
Chair Morris led the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Accounts Payable Warrant & Payroll Journal
a. FY26 AP Warrant # 13 in the amount of $454,895.09.

Minutes:

Selectperson Day motioned to approve the FY26 AP Warrant #13 in the amount
of $454,895.09. Selectperson Pottle seconded the motion. Discussion: None

Vote results:
Ayes: 3 / Nays: 0/ Abstains: 0
b. Payroll Journal # 209 the amount of $10,083.18.

Minutes:
Selectperson Day motioned to approve the FY26 Payroll Journal #209 in the

amount of $10,083.18. Selectperson Pottle seconded the motion. Discussion:

None

Vote results:
Ayes: 3/ Nays: 0 / Abstains: 0

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting



a. November 10, 2025 Regular Meeting

Minutes:

Selectperson Day motioned to approve the minutes of the November 10,
2025,regular meeting as written. Selectperson Pottle seconded the motion.
Discussion: None

Vote results:

Ayes: 3 / Nays: 0 / Abstains: O

5. Public Comment - Non- Agenda ltems

Minutes:
There was no public comment.

6. Department Head Reports
a. Select Board

Minutes:

Selectperson Day reported that she attended the Solid Waste Committee
Meeting this past week and they reported about their tour of EcoMaine. They
also received a letter from the CEO of EcoMaine which describes the fiscal year
rate increase for fiscal year 2027. The solid waste and recycling will now be
charged at the same rate per ton in fiscal year 2027. There are supposedly
reimbursements coming for the recycling but we are lacking details about those
reimbursements. Selectperson Day read the letter: DATE: October 27, 2025 TO:
Town Managers & Administrators FROM: Kevin Roche, CEO/General Manager
RE: Rates for FY 27

On Qctober 16, 2025, the Full Board of Directors voted on the rate increases for
FY 27. Based on the projections for future needs of the organization, the Full
Board of Directors has approved rate adjustments (to begin July 1, 2026) as
follows: ® Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) for Owner Communities: $110.75 per
ton (up $3.25). * Single-Sort Recycling for Owner Communities: $110.75 per
ton (up $25.75). Note that this increase was made to align with the Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR) law that is expected to provide reimbursement
opportunities for our investments in Recycling. Please contact me if you have
any guestions. Selectperson Day commented that she had questions. Chair
Morris asked what the extended producer responsibility law is. The Town
Administrator stated we are trying to figure that piece out. We received this
report asking if we had joined the stewardship program. When we asked for
details we were given no information. At the tour, the Chair of the Solid Waste
Committee asked about the program. We were told it's coming next year and it
will be a reimbursement program. We believe it is tied to the EPR law. It's
reimbursement for recycling. It seems that this will offset the rate increase and
won't be any savings to the town but we are waiting on more details. Chair
Morris stated he remembers conversations about this with some people at the
Department of Environmental Protection who said that they're going to be
billing the producers of the waste. He's not sure how that will trickle down to
the town. The Town Administrator stated we think that is where the stewardship
program comes in for the reimbursement portion. But if the EPR law is about
better packaging or reduction in packaging, that should be hitting those big



retailers. Chair Morris stated this letter goes against the covenant of EcoMaine
who was established to provide a recycling waste stream for the owner
communities. That is part of its charter. Chair Morris asked if the committee has
the results of the survey. Selectperson Day stated the results of the survey are
not yet complete. They are working on it. They did share the results they have
so far but she did not have those notes. They gave a detailed description of the
tour and said it was very interesting. Dan Nelson, the Chair of the Solid Waste
Committee has as many questions as we did. Chair Morris stated it might be
worth looking into other alternatives. Selectperson Day stated that the majority
of the surveys from election day, residents stated they like the bin system.

7. New Business
a. Al Policy Draft - Attorney Review

Minutes:

The Town Administrator received feedback from the attorney. He made some
suggestions that have since been edited and sent back to him. We are awaiting
his review of the edits. More research was done on Microsoft CoPilot and she
will report on that. She then went over the edits which included changing the
word employee to "user", striking the managerial or Select Board approval
requirement, edited the wording stating that CoPilot is the town approved GAI
tool and edited the wording on personal use of the town's GAl. She also
reported that she contacted ION Networking to get some information on how
Microsoft CoPilot works. If a subscription is purchased there are then two
options to toggle between. One is web and the other is work. If you are on web,
you are putting the information out there and receiving information just as if you
are using ChatGPT. But if you are using work then it's only pulling data
contained on that particular computer. It isn't even accessing other computers
on the network. As an example, if | asked it to write me a summary of our
personnel policy, it's going to be using the policy | have saved on my computer
to write that summary. We are now waiting to hear back from the attorney
regarding the recent edits. She is also attending a training on December 5,
2025 that is focused completely on Al integration in the municipal world. Chair
Morris wanted to state again the purpose of the policy is to ensure that
employee work for the town is employee generated and not Al. It's meant to
help with our work but not do our work for us. That is stated at the beginning of
the policy. The policy gives examples of how it could assist and states it should
not be replacing professional skill or thought process. Chair Morris stated, on a
side note, there was a story circulating in a Vermont newspaper about a small
town that used Al to generate a couple of zoning land use ordinances and it's
now at Vermont's supreme court. Matt Welch, Fickett Road, asked how would
we know if it's Al generated or employee generated? The Town Administrator
stated we have to cite it according to the policy. If any part has Al use in the
work then we need to put a disclaimer stating Microsoft CoPilot was used to
enhance, edit, draft etc. We have requested through the policy that a citation is
part of the process. Chair Morris asked if that answered his question and he
stated yes.

b. Volunteer Forms - Shane Brady, Cori Green



Minutes:

Chair Morris stated Corie Green has submitted a volunteer form and has
indicated the Capital Improvement Planning Committee and Mallett Hall
Buildings and Grounds Committee. The Town Administrator stated her form
indicated her first choice is the CAP Committee but if they are all set than her
second choice is Mallett Hall Committee. There are currently five members on
the CAP Committee. Selectperson Day asked what is going on with the Mallett
Hall Committee. It seems like the Capital Planning would be a good place if that
is her preference. Chair Morris stated the Mallett Hall Committee is in a
amorphous form at this point in time. He recommends that we appoint her to
the Capital Asset Planning Committee. Chair Morris motioned to appoint Corilie

the motion. Discussion: None Yes 3; No 0

Chair Morris stated the next volunteer form is Shane Brady. He has indicated he
would serve on any and all. Since he is here, he was asked which one he
prefers. He indicated the Conservation Commission. Selectperson Day asked
Mr. Brady to speak to his interest in the committee and what you would bring to
the committee. Mr. Brady replied that he basically thinks there should be a use
and we should keep Pownal the way it is but also not just turn every piece of
land into a set of trails. We should be able to preserve the town and the
characteristics but use some of the land for practical uses like a ball field or
playground or something other than trails.

Chair Morris stated he has reached out to a number of committees and their
resounding question is what would Shane respond to if we asked him why
there is a dilapidated bus sitting in a field next to a neighbor. We've had
conversations about that for a long time and would have to report back to the
committee. That is a unanimous question that people would like the answer too
if you're willing but you don't have too. Mr. Brady stated he feels he is a pretty
reasonable person and then once you get to a certain point it's like a line in the
sand. The bus didn't show up overnight. It was a couple of years worth of
discrepancies. Chair Morris asked if the bus was a response to a dispute
between neighbors. Mr. Brady answered yes. There was an issue with a
neighbor mowing roughly 150 feet of our field and we asked multiple times for it
to get closer to the property line and that is why the bus showed up. It was
probably a year and half to two years after the initial issue. Selectperson Day
asked how he would characterize his relationship with the neighbor now? Mr.
Brady stated he assumes friendly. | wave and they wave. Chair Morris stated
the second part of conversations as chairperson is your willingness to go to
court against the town. Multiple committee chairs have stated how would
somebody who has been so litigious towards the town work on a committee
that is generally working for the better of the town. You've been in court with
the town twice since I've been on the board and I'm assuming we'll be there
again. Mr. Brady stated he thinks it was only once. It was about the mobile
home park overlay on a piece of land that was eliminated. Chair Morris stated
that you appealed that. Mr. Brady stated he believes that everybody should
follow the same set of rules. In his opinion, the mobile home park overlay
should have been removed before it was entered into a conservation easement
by the Royal River and that's how that came about. | don't just do it to do it

Green-to-the Capital Asset Planning Committee.-SelectpersonPottle seconded



because | feel like everybody should follow the same rules . Chair Morris asked
that in your relationship with the town that you have followed the rules that the
town has. Would you say that you are a rule follower. Mr. Brady stated he does
follow the rules and is unclear which rules he hasn't followed. Chair Morris
followed up with would you say that you are a rule follower. Mr. Brady stated he
does follow the rules of the town ordinance. Selectperson Day asked if he was
opposed to the conservation easement on the Eimwood Road. Mr. Brady
stated no, he is not opposed to that. He was opposed to the way it was done.
He felt the mobile home park overlay should have been removed before
entering into a conservation easement. It's since been eliminated but it took a
year. Chair Morris motioned to appoint Shane Brady to the Conservation
Commission. Selectperson Pottle seconded the motion. Discussion: None, Yes
0; No 3. Chair Morris stated there are other committees that he could serve on.
He will take some time to think about it and check in with Becky on what
committees might need people.

c. RFP Submissions - Sand and Salt Shed

Minutes:

The Town Administrator stated we did not receive any submissions. We need to
edit the RFP. We got some calls and one person potentially came and looked
but there was some confusion about what we were requesting. We requested
they give us an estimate for a full site review and an estimate to do the work.
Typically bigger companies have an engineering department and can handle
this request but is was smaller firms calling and they would need to do a full site
review first. The RFP should be reviewed and an edited one brought to the next
meeting. Chair Morris asked for more clarification. The Town Administrator
gave a quick summary. Selectperson Pottle agreed that it made sense to
approach it that way. The Town Administrator will send the edited version to
Selectperson Pottle for feedback.

d. Civics 101 Classes

Minutes:

Peter Wagner sent an emalil to the Select Board the previous week stating that
the fifth grade class did not have the capacity to help with the Civics 101
classes. Chair Morris will follow up with Mr. Wagner and Ms. Winkler. The initial
conversation was the fifth graders would attend the classes with their parents.

e. Impact Fee Refund Request - Shane Brady

Minutes:

Chair Morris recapped that Shane Brady is requesting reimbursement of impact
fees in the amount of $1392 for each property since he will be putting in
affordable housing. Chair Morris read the town attorneys email regarding the
matter:

Ben,

The Select Board wanted me to reach out to get your guidance on whether
impact fees can be reimbursed if a person is putting in affordable housing. Is
there anything in our ordinance or state law that allows for this? We had a



resident come to the SB meeting last night requesting the reimbursement
because they are putting in affordable housing. When asked what their
definition was, they used HUD’s definition.

Becky -

Section 8(c)(3) of the Town’s Impact Fee Ordinance provides that the Select
Board may, following notice and a public hearing, refund some or all of a
required impact fee if the fee is attributed to construction of affordable housing.
So, under the plain language of the existing ordinance, the Select Board does
have the authority under your question.

I will note that ’'m not entirely comfortable with this concept, however, and
worry about a potential legal challenge. While | don’t oppose the concept,
affordable housing is still housing, and will create the same types of impacts on
Pownal’s infrastructure as any other unit of housing. | think the developer of
market rate housing, who is not eligible for this type of refund or reduction
could well make the argument that this section is constitutionally impermissible.
Ultimately, however, the Ordinance does not require the Select Board to waive
or refund any portion of the impact fee, even if it determines that the subject
project qualifies for such a waiver or refund. | would encourage the Select
Board to weigh my concerns when making a decision. Hopefully, to the extent
a refund or waiver is granted, there is no opposition at the public hearing, and
no issues are raised within the 30 day appeal period.

Please let me know if you’d like to discuss further.

Selectperson Day stated her thought is that is sets a kind of precedent and she
thinks that this is something that we are looking towards more development in
the town and we need to really carefully consider that the impact fees are there
to assist with the town infrastructure and being able to sustain more people. It
may not be a great precedent. However, she is openminded to creating some
sort of incentive for affordable housing in Pownal. That's a big piece of the
comprehensive plan. Selectperson Pottle agrees with Selectperson Day about it
not really being a great precedence to be setting. There are concerns about the
legal ramifications from other developers because the attorney did say a house
is a house whether it's affordable or astronomical in pricing. It's still going to
have vehicles, it's still going to have residents. Chair Morris had similar feelings
about most everything that was said. According to the ordinance we are
required to have a public hearing. What would would the Board say about
taking this to a public hearing. Is there any appetite for holding a public hearing.
Is that productive or counterproductive. Selectperson Day stated based on
what was said about affordable housing and the comprehensive plan, she's
open to having a public hearing. Selectperson Pottle is open to a public
hearing. He feels there will be arguments from developers, the town residents,
etc. Chair Morris stated that is the point of the public hearing; to hear what
people have to say. Chair Morris asked if there is any red flag about holding a
public hearing. The Town Administrator didn't see any. On the advice of the
attorney, Chair Morris suggested we set a date for a public hearing for Mr.
Brady's request for impact fee reimbursement. The date was set for the first
meeting in January.

8. Old Business



9. Correspondence

Minutes:

Selectperson Day had a follow up meeting with Eli from Ampion regarding the town
joining into a community solar program. He reviewed the utility bills from all
departments of the town and reported back that they would foresee, based on the 2025
rate at 33 kilowatts per hour, we would save $926 a year. That is noted that this is prior
to heat pumps being installed in which case the is going to go up. Eli would like to
come present to the town and Select Board. Talking with Becky, it seemed the
December 8th agenda is pretty full so he could come later in December or January. He
was asked about the fee for ending the agreement. He stated there is no fee. The only
request is there is 6 months notice because part of the year the daylight hours are short
and part of the year they are much longer so this helps even out the storage.

Chair Morris received a letter from Alberta Ryan. She is a realtor and would like to be
considered to be our tax lien real estate agent. We are required by law to list a property
with a realtor. He asked the Town Administrator to summarize the new requirements.
She stated we are required by law to list any tax acquired property with a realtor for six
months if we choose to dispose of any. We need to update our policy. We have not
engaged in any partnerships with any realtors. State law also changed that any amount
of money we collect above what is owed to the town for taxes, legal fees, or
advertisements goes back to the owner of record at the time of sale.

Chair Morris had recent conversations with Shane Brady regarding the mobile home
overlay and suggested that it be considered on the Allen Road near his property, which
he will duly note and talk with our Code Enforcement Officer and Planning Office. Mr.
Brady also asked about the possibility of using town land behind his property as a site
for a well. Chair Morris is not quite clear on how large the property is. At one point the
property was being considered to enter into an agreement with the town for a solar
farm. It's right next to the power lines.

Chair Morris attended the RSU5 early education committee. They are talking about the
law that requires towns to identify three and four year olds with IEPs. His interest in the
topic is that it was leaked out they were considering using the Pownal School as a site
for a classroom.

a. GPCOG Invite

Minutes:
The Town Administrator stated we received an invite from GPCOG and to let
her know if anyone wants to attend and she will RSVP.

10. Any Other Business

Minutes:

The Town Administrator wanted to remind everyone of the FOIA training Monday,
December 8th at 5 pm. We talked about doing food. I can order a couple of platters.
She also requested that we close the counter from noon to 2 pm on Thursday,
December 18th for the staff holiday luncheon. Chair Morris asked Matt Welch if he
could provide us with a tree for the front of Mallett Hall. He agreed.

11. Executive Session per 1 M.R.S.A 405 (6)(A) - Personnel Matters

Minutes:



Chair Morris motioned to enter into the Executive Session per 1 M.R.S.A 405 (6)(A) -
Personnel Matters at 7:22 pm. Selectperson Day seconded the motion. Discussion:
None. Chair Morris motioned to exit the executive session at 7:56 pm. Selectperson
Day seconded the motion. Discussion: None

Vote results:
Ayes: 3 / Nays: 0 / Abstains: 0

12. Adjournment

Minutes:

Selectperson Day motioned to adjourn the meeting. Selectperson Pottle seconded the
motion. Discussion: None

The meeting was adjourned at 7:56 pm.

Respectfully Submitted, Becky Taylor-Chase Town Administrator

Jon Morris /7]

Kate Day A7 ,/5,}54 ;
George Pottle ,@g/t/f e

Vote results:
Ayes: 3 / Nays: 0 / Abstains: 0

Contact: Becky Taylor-Chase (administrator@pownalmaine.org 207-688-4611) | Minutes published on 12/08/2025,
adopted on 12/01/2025



